
 

 High Peak Borough Council 

 
 
 
CORPORATE SELECT COMMITTEE AGENDA 
 
Date: 
 

Monday, 23 April 2018 

Time: 
 

6.30 pm 

Venue: 
 

The Cafe, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton 

13 April 2018 
 

PART 1 

1. Apologies for Absence  

2. To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee  

 1. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
2. Other Interests 

 

3. Any matters referred to the Committee under the call-in procedure  

4. To approve the minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 8) 

5. Homelessness Strategy (Pages 9 - 38) 

6. Equalities Update (Pages 39 - 50) 

7. Select Committee Work Programme (Pages 51 - 56) 

8. Any questions referred to the Executive Member (Member Services to be advised of 
any questions at least 4 days prior to the meeting)  

9. Exclusion of Press and Public  

 To resolve that the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items of business as there may be disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972 
 

PART II 

10. Exempt minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 57 - 58) 

 (Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information)) 
 

11. Alliance Environmental Services (AES) - Phase 2 Transfer of Services (Pages 59 - 
82) 

 (Paragraph 1, 3, 5 - Information relating to any individual. 

 

Public Document Pack



Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information) 
Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could 
be maintained in legal proceedings.) 
 

12. Facilities Management Arrangements (Pages 83 - 100) 

 (Paragraph 3, 4 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding that information) 
Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated 
consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter 
arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or 
office holders under the authority.) 
 

13. Disposal of two strips of land at Dollywood Close, Buxworth (Pages 101 - 108) 

 (Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information)) 
 

14. Electrical Testing and Remediation Housing Revenue Account Properties - Contract 
Award Report (Pages 109 - 124) 

 (Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information)) 
 

 
SIMON BAKER 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

Membership of Corporate Select Committee 
Councillor A Barrow (Chair) Councillor J Douglas (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor G Claff Councillor A Fox 
Councillor L Grooby Councillor P Hardy 
Councillor S Helliwell Councillor D Lomax 
Councillor A McKeown Councillor R McKeown 
Councillor K Sizeland Councillor G Wharmby 

 



 High Peak Borough Council 
 
 

CORPORATE SELECT COMMITTEE 
 
 

Meeting: Monday, 12 February 2018 at 6.30 pm in The Cafe, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton 
 

Present: Councillor A Barrow (Chair) 
 

 Councillors G Claff, J Douglas, A Fox, L Grooby, J Kappes (substitute for S 
Helliwell), D Lomax, A McKeown, R McKeown, K Sizeland and G Wharmby 
 
Councillors T Ashton, J Pritchard and E Thrane were also in attendance 
 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors P Hardy, S Helliwell, 
J McCabe and T Kemp 
 

18/41 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
(Agenda Item 4) 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 4 December 2017 be approved as 
a correct record. 
 

18/42 THIRD QUARTER FINANCIAL, PERFORMANCE AND PROCUREMENT 
REVIEW 2017/18 
(Agenda Item 5) 
 
The Committee considered a report which provided information on the 
Council’s overall performance and financial position for the period ended 31 
December 2017 (“Third Quarter 2017/18”). 
 
A summary of the Council’s performance and financial position was set out 
in paragraph 3 of the report.  The first report from Alliance Environmental 
Services (AES) was set out at page 18 of the report, which indicated that the 
company was reporting a forecast profit before year 1 savings payable to 
HPBC, which is an improved position against budget.  An assessment of the 
impact of efficiency measures was set out in paragraph 5 of the report, 
which indicated that the Council is on course to meet the overall saving 
requirements for the year. 
 
Regarding the HRA capital programme, further information was requested 
around the value of aids and adaptations outstanding, plus the value of 
those planned for next year.   
 
Concern was expressed that ward members had not been informed about, 
or had an opportunity to be involved with the estate regeneration funding 
consultancy. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



Corporate Select Committee 
Monday, 12 February 2018 

 

2 
 

That the third quarter 2017/18 financial, procurement and performance 
position as detailed in appendices A, B and C and summarised at paragraph 
3.3 of the report, be noted. 
 
 
 

18/43 2018/19 BUDGET AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2018/19 TO 
2021/22 
(Agenda Item 6) 
 
The Committee considered the proposed budget for 2018/19, updated 
Medium Term Financial Plan 2018/19 – 2021/22, Procurement Forward 
Plan 2018/19 and proposed Fees and Charges for 2018/19. 
 
The report indicated that satisfactory progress was being made in achieving 
savings with good forecast reserves.  Uncertainties remained around 
business rates, with the authority being part of a Derbyshire wide pilot for 
the 100% business rates retention scheme for 2018/19.  Reference was 
also made to the potential impact of changes in the frequency and size of 
interest rates changes. 
 
The proposed Fees and Charges for 2018/19 included a recommendation 
for an increase in car parking charges and the extension of the residents car 
parking scheme by 1 hour, and in response to a query, members were 
advised that the proposed increase in car parking charges was not directly 
linked to the extension of the residents car parking scheme. 
 
It was noted that an amendment was necessary to the report to reflect no 
charge for the first hour of car parking in New Mills (Appendix C). 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Executive be requested to recommend that Council: 
 

• Approve the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
Budget for 2018/19 as detailed in Appendix A (section 8) 

 
• Approve the revised Medium Term Financial Plan (2018/19 to 

2021/22) as detailed in Appendix A, including the revised Capital 
Programme (attached at Annex A) for the General Fund and HRA 
 

• Approve the proposed Procurement Forward Plan for 2018/19, 
providing the authority to procure based on procurement activity 
details in Appendix B 
 

• Approve the proposed Fees and Charges for 2018/19 as details in 
Appendix C, subject to the amendment around car parking in New 
Mills; 
 

• Approve a Band D Council Tax of £186.36 for 2018/19 (an increase 
of 2.9% from 2018/19) 
 

• Approve the following HRA charges: Page 4



Corporate Select Committee 
Monday, 12 February 2018 

 

3 
 

 
o Dwellings rents to reduce by an average of 1% (over 52 

weeks) from £71.73 to £70.00 average per week; 
o Garage rents to be increased by 5% (over 52 weeks) from 

£6.16 to £6.47 average per week; 
o Other charges including service charges to increase by a 

maximum of 5% for current tenants 
o Fuel charges at individual blocks have been reviewed and the 

2018/19 charge is based on 2016/17 and 2017/18 actual fuel 
usage/prices charges on an individual scheme basis; 

o From 1 April 2018, new tenants are charge ‘formula’ rent (less 
1%) plus any applicable service charge based on the actual 
cost to the Council 

 
• Note the Chief Finance Officer’s view that the level of reserves are 

adequate for the Council based on this budget and the circumstances 
in place at the time of preparing it (Appendix A section 7) 

 
18/44 COMMUNITY RIGHT TO BID - NOMINATION OF A COMMUNITY ASSET 

(THE SERPENTINE PLANT NURSERY) 
(Agenda Item 7) 
 
The Committee considered a report which advised that the Council had 
received a nomination for the old Council Plant Nursery, Serpentine Walks, 
off Burlington Road, Buxton to be registered as an asset of community value 
and in accordance with the Council’s policy must decide whether to approve 
or refuse the nomination.   
 
Reference was made to a letter sent by the nominating organisation to the 
Buxton Advertizer, which had been circulated to the Committee. 
 
In response to a query regarding the licence issued for the site, it was 
confirmed that the group were aware that the licence included a notice 
period of 14 days, and that they had previously indicated that they were 
looking for alternative locations. 
 
It was acknowledged by members that the policy had been applied correctly 
in assessing the nomination, and noted that only part of the site had been 
licenced in the first instance to determine whether the concept would work.  
It was commented that although the Council has a responsibility to get best 
value, other duties and responsibilities should also have been taken into 
account. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Executive be recommended to refuse the listing of the old Council 
Plant Nursery, Serpentine Walks, off Burlington Road, Buxton as an asset of 
community value. 
 
 

18/45 INFORMATION GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 
(Agenda Item 8) 
 Page 5



Corporate Select Committee 
Monday, 12 February 2018 

 

4 
 

The Committee considered a report which introduced an information 
governance framework for managing information and the associated risks, 
and supporting regulatory, legal, and operational requirements to ensure 
that the Council complies with legislative requirements when processing 
information. 
 
It was requested that training on the General Data Protection Regulations 
(GDPR) be arranged for Borough and Parish Councillors, and it was 
suggested that the requirements around registration with the ICO be 
incorporated into the elections training for prospective councillors. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the Executive be recommended to note the content of the 
report, and approve the proposed approach to information 
governance; 

 
2. That the Executive be recommended to approve that the Council 

register all Councillors with the ICO, and meet the registration costs, 
unless individual councillors wish to op-out from registering. 

 
18/46 SELECT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 

(Agenda Item 9) 
 
A report outlining the impact of the closure of Buxton Court on residents and 
the Council be submitted to a future meeting of the Committee. 
 
There would be a meeting of the Asset Management Working Group prior to 
the meeting of Corporate Select Committee on 23 April. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That, subject to the above, the Select Committee Work Programmes be 
noted. 
 

18/47 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
(Agenda Item 11) 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items of business as there may be disclosure 
of exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 
 

18/48 EXEMPT MINUTES 
(Agenda Item 12) 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the exempt minutes of the meeting held on 4 December 2017 be 
approved as a correct record. 
 Page 6



Corporate Select Committee 
Monday, 12 February 2018 

 

5 
 

18/49 PAVILION GARDENS CAPITAL WORKS - PHASE 2 
(Agenda Item 13) 
 
The Committee considered timescales and procurement arrangements for 
the second phase of the Pavilion Gardens capital works. 
 
 
The meeting concluded at 7.30 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
CHAIRMAN 

 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
Report to Corporate Select Committee 

 
 23 April 2018 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendices Attached - Appendix A – Homelessness Strategy and Action 
Plan 2018- 2022 

 
 
1. Reason for the Report 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to submit the Homelessness Strategy and Action 

Plan to Committee for approval.     
 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 To recommend the Executive to approve the Alliance wide Homelessness 
Strategy and Action Plan at Appendix A. 

 
 
3. Executive Summary 
 
3.1 The Council has a requirement under the Homelessness Act 2002 to ensure it 

takes a strategic approach in dealing with the issue of homelessness. The 
Alliance wide review of homelessness considers; national and local context, 
implications of Welfare Reforms and Homelessness Reduction Act 2017, local 
housing markets and prevention toolkit. 

 
3.2 The review consequently identifies the following strategic priorities; 

• To prevent homelessness through a comprehensive range of services 
• Ensure suitable accommodation is available to address and prevent 

homelessness 
• Improve the Private Rented Sector Offer 
• Ensure sufficient support is available to address and prevent homelessness 

 
 

 

TITLE: Homelessness Strategy  
 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor McCabe – Executive Councillor  
    for Housing and Communities 
 
CONTACT OFFICER:  Mary Walker – Head of Customer Services  
   
WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



  

3.3 The causes of homelessness are complex however the main reason 
associated with those accepted as homeless is predominantly the loss of a 
private sector tenancy.  Other major drivers of homelessness include 
exclusion by parents/ family/ friends and violent or non-violent relationship 
breakdown. 

 
3.4  The timing of this strategy is particularly relevant with the Homelessness 

Reduction Act 2017 recently enacted 3rd April 2018. There are new legal 
duties to ensure meaningful support to prevent homelessness and secure 
accommodation for everyone who is homeless or at risk of homelessness, 
regardless of priority need. 

 
3.5 The overall aims of this strategy are to identify how the Alliance will:  

• Provide timely, quality advice and assistance to anyone who may potentially 
be threatened with homelessness 

• Work proactively with relevant stakeholders and housing providers to provide 
a coordinated approach to tackling and preventing homelessness.  

• Continue to develop innovative and responsive approaches to support people 
who have concerns about the stability of their current home, with prevention a 
core principle. 

 
4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 
4.1 The strategy contributes to the Corporate Plan 2015-19 aim of helping to 

create a safer and healthier environment for our residents to live and work.   
 
 

5. Options and Analysis 
 
5.1 Option 1- Proceed with the recommendation to approve the attached 

Homelessness Strategy, that has been developed in relation to appropriate 
legislation and consultation with a range of stakeholders (preferred option) 

 
Option 2- Reject the recommendations and not recommend to Executive 
adoption of the Strategy. (Not recommended) 
 
 

6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
There are no specific implications with this report 
 

6.2 Workforce 
There are no specific implications with this report 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
The report has been prepared in line with Council policies 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
Delivery of the Homelessness Strategy is via a mixture of the 
council’s core budget, supplementary funding from partner 

Page 10



  

organisations and Communities and Local Government. Full 
financial details can be found at s.5 in Appendix A 
 

6.5 Legal 
The Homelessness Strategy has been developed in line with the 
appropriate legislation and there are no specific legal implications 
to this report. The Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 makes 
substantial amendments to existing legislation (summarised in 
report s7.5) 
 

6.6 Sustainability 
There are no specific implications with this report 
 

6.7 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
Consultation has been undertaken in relation to the development of 
the Homelessness Strategy. The draft has been made available on 
the council’s web-site and circulated amongst a wide variety of 
stakeholders.      
 

6.8 
 

Risk Assessment 
There are no current significant risks to this report. 

 
Mary Walker 

Head of Customer Services 
 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

 Contact details 

Homelessness Review 
available 
https://www.highpeak.gov
.uk/article/1348/Housing-
Strategy 
and 
https://www.staffsmoorlan
ds.gov.uk/article/1349/Ho
using-Strategy 
 

 Mary Walker 
Head of Customer Services 
mary.walker@highpeak.gov.
uk 

 
7. Background and Detail 
 
7.1  The Homelessness Act 2002 places a statutory duty on local authorities to 

undertake a review of homelessness in their area, and use those findings to 
develop and publish a strategy to prevent homelessness, in consultation with 
local partners and stakeholders. The review identifies local trends and 
challenges, so that the homelessness strategy contains key priorities and 
associated actions that will address challenges and set out a proactive 
approach to address and prevent homelessness. 

 
7.2 Understanding the causes of homelessness is important in order to target 

support at those areas to increase prevention. The major causes of statutory 
homelessness are; loss of private rented accommodation, exclusion by 
parents/ family/ friends and violent or non-violent relationship breakdown. The 

Page 11

https://www.highpeak.gov.uk/article/1348/Housing-Strategy
https://www.highpeak.gov.uk/article/1348/Housing-Strategy
https://www.highpeak.gov.uk/article/1348/Housing-Strategy
https://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/article/1349/Housing-Strategy
https://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/article/1349/Housing-Strategy
https://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/article/1349/Housing-Strategy


  

loss of a private tenancy represents the biggest single cause of homelessness 
and also offers a valuable option to preventing homelessness.  
 

7.3 Poor financial situations can place households at risk of homelessness. 
Positive action to mitigate the ongoing impact of welfare reforms, in particular 
Universal Credit is required in order to prevent homelessness. 
 

7.4 Homelessness applications and duties are predicted to increase, as access to 
private rented accommodation remains difficult and the supply of social 
housing is insufficient to meet need.  
 

7.5 Prior to the introduction of the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 local 
authorities were required to establish whether households were eligible for 
assistance, homeless or threatened with homelessness, and in priority need. If 
also unintentionally homeless and with a local connection, households were 
consequently owed the ‘main housing duty’, a duty to secure accommodation. 
However non priority need households, most likely to be single people without 
children or childless couples, were owed a general ‘advice and assistance’ 
duty only. Under the new Act there is greater emphasis on prevention activity 
with new legal duties to provide meaningful help to secure accommodation to 
everyone who is homeless or at risk of homelessness, regardless of priority 
need. Summary of key measures within the Homelessness Reduction Act 
2017; 

 
• Definition of homelessness/ threatened with homelessness (extended 

from 28 to 56 days to facilitate earlier prevention) 
• Duty to provide advisory services (general duty expanded to include 

specific and targeted information and advice for particular groups, who are at 
increased risk of becoming homeless) 

• New duties to undertake Assessments and Personal Housing Plans 
(PHPs) (An Assessment considers homelessness circumstances, housing and 
support needs. A ‘Personalised Housing Plan’ develops actions to be 
undertaken by customers and the council to try and ensure accommodation is 
retained and/or secured to prevent or relieve homelessness). 

• The new prevention duty (If a household is eligible and threatened with 
homelessness within 56 days, we must during this time take reasonable steps 
to help to retain or secure alternative accommodation) 

• The new duty to relieve homelessness (If homelessness occurs there is 
duty to ‘relieve’ homelessness for a further 56 days) 

• Right to Review (additional review stages) 
• Public duty ‘to refer’ (Specified public authorities from 1st October 2018 will 

have a new legal duty to notify local authorities if they come into contact with 
someone they think may be homeless or at risk of becoming homeless) 
 

7.6 The effectiveness of partnership work with statutory, voluntary and third sector 
agencies is considered key to the delivery of new duties, to ensure 
households’ needs are met and that they are assisted as they work through 
Personalised Housing Plans. The strategy reflects the new duties and informs 
the best use of available resources.  

 
7.7 The strategy sets out the strategic direction and priorities to address and 

Page 12



  

prevent homelessness across the Alliance over the next 5 years. The key 
strategic priorities and associated aims are; 
 
1. To prevent homelessness through a comprehensive range of services 

 
• Ensure all households understand the housing options that are available to 

them by providing high quality service 
• Implement the Homelessness Reduction Act 
• Develop positive housing pathways for young people and vulnerable adults 

with complex needs 
• Continuously improve the homelessness prevention toolkit. There will be focus 

on enhancing partnership work through the development of agreements that 
set out and facilitate agreed best practice and exploring funding opportunities 
in order to maintain and enhance services. There will be also be focus on 
addressing the main causes of homelessness; helping households remain 
together where it is safe with mediation and supporting access to appropriate 
services, support and accommodation for those experiencing domestic abuse.  

 
2. Ensure suitable accommodation is available to address and prevent 

homelessness 
 

• Increase the supply of affordable housing and maximise the use of existing 
housing 

• Ensure that repossession is the last resort  
• Minimise use of temporary accommodation 
• Consider options for single people (including those aged under 35 years) and 

seek to address the gap in relation to young persons supported 
accommodation 

• Maintain supported accommodation options and consider the impact of 
changing funding arrangements for supported accommodation.  

• Ensure vulnerable and homeless households are appropriately prioritised on 
the housing registers 

 
3. Improve the Private Rented Sector Offer 

 
In order to achieve this we will provide advice and initiatives to support both 
tenants and landlords; 
• Deliver a ‘call before you serve’ early intervention landlord service pilot  
• Improve property & management standards through Landlord Accreditation 

Schemes, actively enforcing, establishing Landlord Forums consulting with 
landlords and building staff capacity to address illegal eviction  

• Improve access to the private sector by commissioning services relating to 
both the Access to the Private Rented Sector and Single Persons Housing 
Projects, to secure provision of pre-tenancy training and tenancy support.  

• Review policies and procedures relating to Rent Deposit Bond Schemes and 
Prevention Funds  

• Explore schemes that facilitate affordable shared accommodation 
 

 

Page 13



  

4. Ensure sufficient support is available to address and prevent 
homelessness 

 
• Reduce rough sleeping  
• Mitigate the impacts of welfare reforms including Universal Credit through 

money, debt and budgeting support, digital assistance, stronger links with 
Credit Unions and work with agencies to increase access and options for 
employment opportunities 

• Ensure that vulnerable people can access support around various issues 
where it may impact upon the ability to maintain a home 

• Improve support needs data collection, from Assessments and HCLIC 
monitoring, which can inform understanding and service commissioning 

 
7.8 To ensure that the strategy remains effective the action plan will be flexible to 

change and will be reviewed and developed with the Homelessness Forums. 

Page 14



 
 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 

and 

High Peak Borough Council 

 
Draft Homelessness Strategy  

2018-2022 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Page 
1.0 Introduction  1 
2.0 What is homelessness? 2 
   
 Part 1: Homelessness Strategy 2 - 11 
   
3.0 Summary of key review findings and identified gaps in provision 2 - 4 
4.0 Strategic Priorities 4 - 6 
5.0 Resources available to tackle and prevent homelessness 6 - 10 
5.1 Homelessness Prevention Grant 6 - 8 
5.2 Second Homes Council Tax  6 – 8 
5.3 Discretionary Housing Payments 8 - 9 
5.4 New Burdens funding  9 
5.5 Flexible Homelessness Support Grant 9 – 10 
5.6             Accessing external funding sources 10 
6.0 How the strategy will be implemented and monitored 10 
7.0 Consultation 10 - 11 
   
Appendix 1 Action Plan 12 - 21 

Page 16



1 
 

1.0 Introduction 

Welcome to our homelessness review and homelessness strategy. The Homelessness 
Strategy represents the Councils’ ongoing commitment to tackle and prevent homelessness 
and to work in partnership to offer appropriate services. 

The Homelessness Act 2002 places a statutory duty on local authorities to undertake a 
review of homelessness in their area, and use those findings to develop and publish a 
strategy to prevent homelessness, in consultation with local partners and stakeholders. In 
2017 we commenced a review of homelessness across the Councils’ areas. The 
Homelessness Review provides an assessment of; 

• The levels and likely future levels of homelessness  
• The activities that are carried out which prevent homelessness, secure 

accommodation and provide support to people who are or may become homeless  
• The resources available to carry out these activities 

 
The review identifies key trends and local challenges set against the wider national context, 
so that the Homelessness Strategy effectively sets out a responsive approach to prevent 
homelessness and provide support to people who are homeless, or at risk of becoming 
homeless. The homelessness strategy contains key strategic priorities and associated aims 
and actions that set out the approach to address and prevent homelessness and frame the 
work of the Housing Advice Service.  

The timing of this strategy is particularly relevant as the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 
is due to come into force 3rd April 2018 and represents the biggest change to homelessness 
legislation in over a decade. There are new legal duties to ensure meaningful support to 
prevent homelessness and secure accommodation for everyone who is homeless or at risk 
of homelessness, regardless of whether they are in priority need.  

The previous 2012 Homelessness Strategies identified the following strategic priorities;  
• Prevent homelessness and sustain tenancies  
• Work in partnership to prevent homelessness  
• Mitigate the impacts of Welfare Reforms and the Localism Act 
• Increase the availability of affordable housing 
In the intervening years there has been considerable progress to develop timely and relevant 
services to prevent homelessness and 1721 preventions have been achieved.  
  
The overall aims of this strategy are to identify how the Council will:  
• Provide timely, quality advice and assistance to anyone who may potentially be threatened 
with homelessness 
• Work proactively with relevant stakeholders and housing providers to provide a 
coordinated approach to tackling and preventing homelessness  
• Continue to develop innovative and responsive approaches to support people who have 
concerns about the stability of their current home, with prevention a core principle 
 
This strategy is developed in consultation with a broad cross section of stakeholders 
including housing, service and support providers and the voluntary sector. To ensure that the 
strategy remains effective the action plan will be flexible to change and will be reviewed and 
developed with the Homelessness Forums.  
 
This document is divided into two parts:  
Part 1 the Homelessness Strategy 
Part 2 contains the findings of the Homelessness Review (for the purposes of committee 
reporting part 2 is not included but is available on the intranet) 

Page 17



2 
 

 
2.0 What is homelessness? 
 
Homeless people are not a homogenous group, their needs and life experiences rarely 
follow the same path. Homelessness relates to not having a settled or safe home. The most 
visible form of homelessness is rough sleeping. Homelessness relates to having no or 
limited rights to remain, insecure lodgings, ‘sofa surfing’ or threat of repossession. 
Accommodation may be unsuitable or unsafe for a variety of reasons such as severe 
overcrowding, unsanitary conditions or domestic abuse. 
 
The statutory definition of homelessness is defined by the Housing Act 1996 s.175: A person 
is homeless if they have no accommodation in the UK or elsewhere which is available for 
them (and normally residing family members) to occupy and which they have legal right to 
occupy. A person will also be homeless if they have accommodation but cannot secure entry 
to it, or where accommodation that is a moveable structure (such as a caravan of a house 
boat) does not have a permitted place in order to provide accommodation. A person who has 
accommodation is to be treated as homeless where it would not be reasonable to continue 
to occupy. 
 
Many, as part of everyday life, face experiences or triggers that could lead to homelessness 
such as a relationship breakdown or the ending of a tenancy. In most cases individuals are 
able to find suitable accommodation using their own resources. But for others these events 
can lead to homelessness; either because they lack the resources to tackle their immediate 
challenge - for example enough money for a deposit; or because they have underlying 
problems which make it hard for them to deal with their situation. There is a general 
consensus that homelessness is ‘more than a roof’, goes beyond simply being ‘a housing 
issue’ and that there are often intrinsic links with poor health, social exclusion, low income 
and welfare reform. It can be difficult to separate causes from symptoms. Homelessness 
brings uncertainty and has a detrimental affect on individuals, families and society. It can 
affect health and well being, ability to maintain education, employment and social networks. 
Homelessness prevention as part of an ‘invest to save’ approach saves cost to the Council 
(temporary accommodation, homelessness services), broader public sector services (health, 
social services, crime) and poor outcomes for potentially vulnerable residents. 

 
 

-----------------------------------------Part 1: Homelessness Strategy-------------------------------------- 
 
3.0 Summary of review findings and identified gaps in provision 
 
Changes within homeless legislation could have a huge impact on the services we provide.  
Homelessness applications and duties are predicted to increase, as access to private rented 
accommodation remains difficult and the supply of social housing is insufficient to meet 
need.  
 
The number of private sector residents facing eviction is increasing as private landlords exit 
the housing benefit market, due to the impact of welfare reforms that reduce available 
benefit income, alongside demand from working households who cannot afford to buy. 
 
Homelessness levels are rising in High Peak and a reduction in support services is having 
an impact across the Council, more people are presenting with complex needs, often 
including a substance misuse or offending histories who are increasingly challenging to 
assist. They may be excluded from social housing registers and private and social landlords 
are becoming more risk averse. The resolution of housing need can often only be addressed 
with help from other agencies to support individuals’ with their health needs. A greater 

Page 18



3 
 

emphasis on support and partnership working is needed to ensure that any housing 
provision is sustainable. 
Understanding the causes of homelessness is crucial in order to target support at those 
areas to increase prevention. The major causes of statutory homelessness are; loss of 
private rented accommodation, exclusion by parents/ family/ friends and violent or non-
violent relationship breakdown.  
 
The loss of a private tenancy represents the biggest single cause of homelessness and also 
offers a valuable option to preventing homelessness. The Council shall work proactively with 
landlords to improve property and management standards in this sector and develop its role 
as an important provider of homelessness prevention services. Vital to address 
homelessness and accommodation need is action to develop the Private Rented Sector 
Offer that includes advice and initiatives to support both tenants and landlords. 
 
Homelessness is least likely to occur amongst persons 65+. The older population is 
increasing but not homelessness; this may be an issue in the future.  
 
There is a need to explore advice and support available to people from abroad who may 
become ineligible households to ensure an effective response should this arise. 
 
To build links that help to address the care and support needs of vulnerable customers, 
partnership work is necessary to help customers achieve sustainable and healthy living 
solutions. Effective partnership work with statutory, voluntary and third sector agencies is 
considered key to the delivery of early prevention, new homelessness duties and the 
securing of funding opportunities to maintain and enhance services. The effectiveness of 
operational casework can be improved through strategic development of joint working 
agreements that set out and facilitate agreed best practices. 
 
Levels of rough sleeping are low, however ongoing work is required to ensure an effective 
response. Ongoing outreach service provision must support the No Second Night Out vision 
and partnership working is required in order for health and support needs to be addressed to 
facilitate a move away from the streets as soon as possible into sustainable housing 
solutions. To support this, ensure access to statutory homelessness assessments and 
assistance, and suitable temporary accommodation provision in severe weather, there is a 
need to develop effective partnership working through a joint working protocol around tent 
provision within High Peak. 

Key to preventing tenancy failure and repeat homelessness is the availability of sufficient 
support. In the Staffordshire Moorlands there is a gap in generic tenancy support provision 
and access to furniture and white goods is also difficult. Going forward there is opportunity to 
improve support needs data collection, from Assessments and HCLIC monitoring, which can 
inform understanding and service commissioning. 
 
Poor financial situations can place households at risk of homelessness. Positive action to 
mitigate the ongoing impact of welfare reforms including Universal Credit is required in order 
to prevent homelessness. There is a clear need for ongoing money, debt and budgeting 
support, digital support, stronger links with Credit Unions and work with agencies to increase 
access and options for access to employment. 
 
It is important to ensure that suitable accommodation is available for those that are or may 
become homelessness. Here there is scope to work with Registered Providers around the 
implementation of flexible or fixed term tenancies, nomination agreements, new build 
affordable housing supply, the early identification of potential evictions from social tenancies, 
also the review of allocation policies to ensure that homeless and vulnerable households are 
appropriately prioritised and mutual exchange options. It will be important to consider the 

Page 19



4 
 

implications of government proposals to change supported accommodation funding from 
2020 and in the interim undertake further work to improve performance monitoring in relation 
to schemes receiving Intensive Housing Management funding and continue work to support 
‘move on’ from supported accommodation. The use of temporary accommodation is rising in 
High Peak and further Alliance wide work is needed to understand and implement changes 
to minimise the need for temporary accommodation. It will also be necessary to consider the 
implications of government proposals to change supported accommodation funding from 
2020 in relation to Staffordshire Moorlands temporary accommodation provision. 
 
Younger people appear to be increasingly marginalised. Where a family is unwilling to 
accommodate the housing advice service will work with families to come to a sustainable 
solution. Building capacity around mediation and home visits can help households remain 
together where it is safe. However by the time help is sought however, the position can often 
be untenable. Assistance is therefore given to find alternative accommodation however this 
can be challenging, for instance there is a lack of supported accommodation for young 
people in the Staffordshire Moorlands and exploring alternatives such as Nightstop would be 
beneficial. There is also a need to ensure young people and service users generally have 
realistic perceptions of homelessness, housing options (including the availability of social 
housing) and support services, which we can begin to address through improved information 
and a young persons housing pathway. 
 
The Council will continue to develop a comprehensive range of available prevention services 
and initiatives. There is also opportunity to develop customer feedback methods to inform 
and improve service delivery. 
 
4.0 Strategic Priorities 
 
The homelessness strategy 2012 had the following key strategic priorities:  

• Preventing homelessness and sustaining tenancies  
• Working in partnership to prevent homelessness   
• Mitigating the impacts of Welfare Reforms and the Localism Act 
• Increasing the availability of affordable housing 

 
This strategy continues to support these objectives. The following strategic priorities have 
been developed following consideration of review information related to national and local 
contexts, relevant guidance and consultation with stakeholders. The strategic priorities 
provide a sound framework to achieve Council ambitions for forthcoming years. The 
strategic priorities together with a summary of aims to deliver them are set out below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Ensure all households understand the housing options that are available to them by 
providing high quality service 
 

• Implement the Homelessness Reduction Act 
 

• Develop positive housing pathways for young people and vulnerable adults with 
complex needs 

 
• Continuously improve the homelessness prevention toolkit. There will be focus on 

enhancing partnership work through the development of agreements that set out and 

Strategic Priority 1: To prevent homelessness through a comprehensive range 
of services 

 

Page 20



5 
 

facilitate agreed best practice and exploring funding opportunities in order to maintain 
and enhance services. There will be also be focus on addressing the main causes of 
homelessness; helping households remain together where it is safe with mediation 
and supporting access to appropriate services, support and accommodation for those 
experiencing domestic abuse.  

 
 
 
 
 

• Increase the supply of affordable housing and maximise the use of existing housing 
 

• Ensure that repossession is the last resort  
 

• Minimise use of temporary accommodation 
 

• Consider options for single people (including those aged under 35 years) and seek to 
address the gap in relation to young persons supported accommodation  

 
• Maintain supported accommodation options and consider the impact of changing 

funding arrangements for supported accommodation.  
 

• Ensure vulnerable and homeless households are appropriately prioritised on the 
housing registers 

 
 
 
 
In order to achieve this we will provide advice and initiatives to support both tenants and 
landlords; 
 

• Deliver a ‘call before you serve’ early intervention landlord service pilot  
 

• Improve property & management standards through Landlord Accreditation 
Schemes, actively enforcing, establishing Landlord Forums consulting with landlords 
and building staff capacity to address illegal eviction  
 

• Improve access to the private sector by commissioning services relating to both the 
Access to the Private Rented Sector and Single Persons Housing Projects, to secure 
provision of pre-tenancy training and tenancy support.  

 
• Review policies and procedures relating to Rent Deposit Bond Schemes and 

Prevention Funds  
 

• Explore schemes that facilitate affordable shared accommodation 
 
 
 
 
 

• Reduce rough sleeping  
 

Strategic Priority 2: Ensure suitable accommodation is available to address and                
prevent homelessness 

 

Strategic Priority 3: Improve the Private Rented Sector Offer 

 

Strategic Priority 4: Ensure sufficient support is available to address and prevent 
homelessness 

 

Page 21



6 
 

• Mitigate the impacts of welfare reforms including Universal Credit through money, 
debt and budgeting support, digital assistance, stronger links with Credit Unions and 
work with agencies to increase access and options for employment opportunities. 

• Ensure that vulnerable people can access support around various issues where it 
may impact upon the ability to maintain a home.  This will include work to address the 
gap in tenancy support and access to furniture and white goods within the 
Staffordshire Moorlands. 
 

• Improve support needs data collection, from Assessments and HCLIC monitoring, 
which can inform understanding and service commissioning 

 
5.0 Resources available to tackle and prevent homelessness 
 
The Council has invested resources from a range of funding streams into activities which 
have contributed to preventing and addressing homelessness and supporting vulnerable 
people in housing need. Our approach to tackling homelessness is based upon an ‘invest to 
save’ principle, through which services that meet strategic priorities and actively prevent 
homelessness are provided with funding, with the clear intention of reducing costs. Budgets 
are reviewed each year as part of the Council’s budgetary process. The Council will continue 
to work with partners to access alternative and review existing funding sources, with 
opportunities to implement services through partnerships, across multiple local authority 
areas or at County or sub regional level considered. The following is a summary of the most 
significant funding sources; 
 
5.1 Homelessness Prevention Grant 
 
Local authorities receive annual Homelessness Prevention Grant from the Department of 
Communities and Local Government. The Government confirmed their continued support to 
maintain and protect the Homeless Prevention Grant funding for local authorities in the 
November 2015 Spending Review. They have committed funding through the Local 
Government Finance Settlement announced for the 2016- 2020 financial period. Across the 
Council the grant is used on funding for homelessness services; staff, activities and projects 
to prevent homelessness.  
 
5.2 Second Homes Council Tax (HPBC only) 
 
An agreement was reached with Derbyshire County Council to fund a programme of projects 
from the increased Council Tax on second homes (fig 1). Since the programme began 
HPBC has been able to support several important projects.  Projects funded through 
Derbyshire County Council Second Homes Council Tax funding allocations must 
demonstrate links to Derbyshire County Council’s Health and Adult Care priorities. These 
priorities focus on vulnerable adults and include domestic violence, learning and physical 
disability, mental health, older people and those with substance misuse issues. The 2018/19 
funding programme, set out in fig 2b approved by DCC Cabinet members.  

Fig 1: Derbyshire County Council Second Homes Council Tax Funding Allocations 
District and Borough Councils  Allocation 2018/19 
Amber Valley £80,000 
Derbyshire Dales £309,000 
High Peak £115,000 
South Derbyshire  £62,000 
Total  £566,000 
 
Figs 2a&b summarise the 2018/19 schemes proposed to be supported by Homelessness 
Prevention Grant and Second Homes Council Tax. 

Page 22



7 
 

 
 
 
Fig 2a: Staffordshire Moorlands 2018/19 proposed allocation 

Project name Service Description  Homeless 
Prevention 

Grant 
Existing Projects 

Rough Sleeper 
Service 

Rough sleeper outreach support service up to £6,000 

Homelessness 
Prevention Fund 

Financial assistance to those at risk of homelessness to 
enable households to retain or secure accommodation 

4,000 

Single Persons 
Housing Project 

Homelessness prevention service for single under 35 years 
threatened with homelessness. Providing pre tenancy 
training, support to access shared accommodation and 
tenancy support 

24,815 

Money and Debt 
Advice 

Generalist and specialist money and debt advice to home 
owners or tenants at risk of losing their home 

7,500 

New Projects                                                                                                         
‘Call before serve’ 
scheme* 

Early intervention landlord service 6,000 

Total   48,310.00 
 
*‘Call before you serve’ campaign  
 
A pilot ‘call before you serve’ initiative is proposed for an initial 1 year trail period during 
2018/19. Considered good practice in relation to the Private Rented Sector Offer, a 
dedicated line for private sector working will made available. Through promotion and 
marketing the initiative will encourage landlords who are experiencing issues with their 
tenancies / tenants to make contact as early as possible before they actually serve a legal 
notice to end the tenancy. The initiative will be led by a separate service with private sector 
expertise who will investigate what measures can be introduced to re-stabilise the tenancy 
as part of collaborative approach with the housing advice service. The loss of a private 
sector is the largest, most common cause of homelessness. There are many far reaching 
benefits of this project including: 

• Alleviation of early intervention workload for housing advice officers, alternative main 
point of contact for landlords in the first instance. 

• Over the life of the pilot the project will aim to stop 10 landlords issuing section 21 
notices to households in each of the partner Local Authority areas saving significant 
amounts of money being spent of costly interim accommodation and bed & breakfast.    

• Recognised as a great example of good practice both in terms of cross-boundary 
working and ‘upstream prevention work’ by the DCLG specialist advisor team.   

• Increased number of positive homelessness preventions 
• Increased signposting, uptake & promotion of Local Authority offered services such 

as rent deposit bond schemes. 
• Increased networking among landlords with property portfolios that may be available, 

therefore potentially increasing private sector supply and homelessness prevention. 
• A dedicated stand-alone and impartial advisory service for landlords to access 

support and guidance.     
• Cross boundary working in this way also allows for best practice to be shared and 

improvements to partner Local Authority services to be made.   
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23



8 
 

 
 
 
Fig 2b: High Peak 2018/19 proposed allocation 

Project Name Service Description  Second 
Homes 
Council 

Tax  

Homeless  
Grant 

Total 

Existing Projects 
Access to the 
Private Rented 
Sector Project 

Provides a combination of services to 
vulnerable households. Including rent bond, 
tenancy support and pre tenancy training 

- 53,995 53,995 

Debt Advice 
Project 

A specialist money, debt and budgeting 
advice project delivered to households that 
may be at risk of homelessness due to 
debt, rent or mortgage arrears 

10,000 15,000 25,000 

Meeting the 
accommodation 
needs of people 
with disabilities  

Grants to achieve the Lifetime Homes 
standard in new build affordable homes or 
adaptations through additional Disabled 
Facility Grants 

45,000 - 45,000 

Support for 
Families in Crisis 
Project 

Good News Family Care provides access to 
suitable accommodation for vulnerable 
women and families who are homeless and 
have domestic abuse or drug and alcohol 
support needs 

20,000 - 20,000 

Domestic Abuse 
Project 

This project enables Crossroads Derbyshire 
to provide a specialist service and 
supported accommodation to younger 
women (under 25 years) to address issues 
of domestic abuse 

20,000 - 20,000 

Vulnerable adults 
affected by welfare 
reforms 

Financial assistance for vulnerable 
households affected by welfare reforms 
with the associated costs of for instance 
downsizing to avoid future arrears, 
assistance with removals or rent arrears. 

5,000 - 5,000 

Action Housing 
Project 

Supported accommodation for high risk 
offenders. This project was previously 
funded through DCC but funding reduced.  

3,000 419.50 3419.5 

Move On Officer A Derbyshire wide project to help 
vulnerable people leaving supported 
accommodation to move-on into 
independent living. 

2,000 - 2,000 

Housing Related 
Support Services 
Programme 

This project will contribute towards funding 
a number of DCC schemes including: 
Housing Related Support Services for 
people with learning disabilities, mental 
health problems and support services for 
older people. 

10,000 - 10,000 

Prevention Fund Financial assistance to those at risk of  
homelessness to enable households to 
retain or secure accommodation 

 5,000 5,000 

New Projects 
‘Call before serve’ 
scheme* 

Early intervention landlord service  6,000 6,000 

Total   115,000 80,414.5 195,414.5 
 
 
 

Page 24



9 
 

5.3 Discretionary Housing Payments 
 
The Council provides short term (up to 13 weeks) financial support in the form of DHPs to 
some people to help meet the shortfall in their housing costs. Indications are that there are a 
number of households claiming this award to sustain their accommodation that would 
potentially be at risk of homelessness if they did not receive these payments as their 
accommodation would become unaffordable. The numbers of applications and awards has 
increased overtime (fig 3a&b). Funding is predominantly provided in relation to under 
occupancy and expenditure in relation to the benefit cap is increasing in recent years. 
Further work can be done with the council revenues and benefits service to ensure that DHP 
is effectively targeted to prevent homelessness and explore the use of funding to help 
secure a move to alternative accommodation (i.e. cash rent deposits). 
 
Fig 3a: High Peak DHP allocation 

Year 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 *2016/2017 
Applications 
Received 151 114 224 493 422 392 370 

DHP Awards 99 71 155 278 247 221 225 
Awards 
Refused 52 43 69 215 175 171 145 

Government 
Contribution £30,005 £38,681 £77,412 £106,783 £103,546 £71,857 £96,264 

Amount Paid £31,913 £20,445 £54,641 £106,670 £106,072 £64,917 £94,127 
*Amounts Paid include DHP for UC Claimants 

Fig 3b: Staffordshire Moorlands DHP allocation 
Year 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 *2016/17 
Applications 
Received 59  116 142 431 422 380 326 

DHP Awards 57 59 80 197 179 170 180 
Awards 
Refused 2 57 62 234 243 210 146 

Government 
Contribution £11,314 £18,068 £36,293 £91,836 £83,089 £67,337 £81,271 

Amount Paid £12,241 £17,121 £32,568 £82,269 £83,070 £52,020 £76,504 
*Amounts Paid include DHP for UC Claimants 

• New Funding 
 

5.4 New Burdens funding  
 
Government promised over £61m of new burdens funding to help local authorities implement 
the new Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 duties (s.8.4). Council allocations are shown in 
fig 4. This funding facilitates a new post commenced March 2018, which supports the 
introduction of the new HRAct and the rollout of Universal Credit (s.8.5).  
 
Fig 4: New Burdens funding 
Authority Allocation 

2017/18 
Allocation 
2018/19 

Allocation 
2019/20 

Total allocation 

High Peak £17,241 £15,793 £20,366 £53,400 
Staffordshire Moorlands £19,277 £17,657 £25,122 £62,056 
 
Government has also provided local authorities with £9,202 an equally distributed share of £3 
million to support the upgrade of IT data systems to monitor the impact of the HRAct.  
 
 

Page 25



10 
 

5.5 Flexible Homelessness Support Grant (FHSG)  
 
Government has provided local authorities with a new ring fenced grant to support 
authorities to address homelessness and help those at risk of homelessness.  
 
 
Fig 5: FHSG funding 
Authority Allocation 2017/18 Allocation 2018/19   Allocation 2019/20 
High Peak £67,451 £71,721 £78,488 
Staffordshire Moorlands £56,429 £61,853 £67,819 
 
5.6 Accessing external funding sources 

The Council proactively works with partners to identify funding sources that will add to our 
homelessness prevention toolkit and improve outcomes for people in homeless and housing 
need. Successful partnerships include; 

DCLG 2016/20 Rough Sleeping Programme 
Government launched a £40 million funding programme to prevent and tackle homelessness 
and rough sleeping in October 2016. A successful application submitted for 9 Derbyshire 
and 3 Staffordshire local authority areas (including SMDC and HPBC) secured funding to 
expand upon an existing Derby City Mission project, to explore and build capacity within the 
voluntary, faith and community sectors to deliver homelessness services. 
 
DCLG Strengthening Accommodation Based Specialist Domestic Abuse Services 
Successful funding applications with Crossroads Derbyshire, ARCH North Staffs and North 
Staffordshire local authorities to support domestic abuse refuge provision. 
 
DCLG Help for Single Homeless 
Successful funding application with Stoke on Trent CC, Newcastle under Lyme BC, Stafford 
BC and SSOTP to expand an existing Community Matron service. 
 
6.0 How the strategy will be implemented and monitored 
 
SMART (Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Relevant, Time bound) actions in the Action Plan 
(Appendix 1) ensure that progress in the delivery of strategy priorities can be monitored. The 
action plan will frame the work of the Housing Advice service and will be reviewed annually 
to ensure that local need is addressed and any local, regional or national changes are taken 
into account. Additional actions may be developed and existing actions changed or updated. 
These reviews will be carried out with key stakeholders and members of the homelessness 
forums that have assisted in the development of the strategy.  
 
Local performance indicators regular monitor progress in relation to homelessness 
applications, prevention and the use of temporary accommodation.  
 
7.0 Consultation 
 
We have involved our partners during the development of our review and strategy. Key 
stakeholders with an interest in homelessness were asked to provide feedback about their 
opinions and experiences of homelessness, validity of review information, emerging strategic 
priorities and actions. The purpose was to share our evidence and seek further information 
from our partners which may strengthen our review and strategy.  
 
The review of evidence and production of this strategy was launched at a Homelessness 
Conference of the HASF Homelessness Forum, where discussions were held on what the 

Page 26



11 
 

key priorities could be, what prevention works well and what more could be done to improve 
prevention outcomes.  
 
A summary of consultation feedback;  
• General comments regarding format, layout and language within the document. 
• Agreement that information in the review and summary (section 3.0) is ‘fully’ accurate. 
• Support and agreement for the identified strategic priorities.  
• Importance of specific action relating to; 1) partnership working around the HRAct and 

early referral to support providers 2) links with the private rented sector involving 
consultation with landlords around the nature of an ‘improved’ offer and marketing around 
‘call before you serve’ campaign 3) review of models to facilitate sharing schemes 4) 
broadening support remit to include a focus on ‘coaching’  

• Support expressed for the HRAct and earlier intervention 
• Concerns expressed regarding the potential impact of welfare reforms upon young 

people, however during the consultation period the position changed with a government 
announcement that regulations will be amended so that all 18 to 21-year-olds will be 
entitled to claim support for housing costs in Universal Credit 

• The importance of partnership work was highlighted, specifically to involve advice 
agencies in planning support for homelessness and getting money advice to 
households who are financially vulnerable which requires a high degree of integration 
 

Page 27



12 
 

Strategic Priority 1:  To prevent homelessness by providing a comprehensive range of services 

Aims Actions  How/ Planned Activity Outcome/ Impact/ 
Evidence/ Performance 

Measure 
Identified Resource Lead(s) Timescale 

Ensure all 
households 
understand the 
housing options 
that are available to 
them by providing 
high quality service. 

Information available re: 
-preventing homelessness, securing 
accommodation if homeless and the 
rights of those who are homeless or 
threatened with homelessness  
- any help or support (provided by 
us or any other local organisations) 
that is available for those who are 
homeless or likely to become 
homeless as well as how to access 
that help 
-specific to the particular groups 
specified in s179(2) who are at 
increased risk of becoming 
homeless and self-help information 

Clear, accessible, up to date 
self-help information on the 
Councils website 

Review web page hits 
 
 

Existing Housing 
Strategy 
Officer 

April 2018 
 
Reviewed every 
6 months to 
ensure 
information up 
to date 

Develop triage approach to facilitate 
informed and effective use of 
interview time 

Information provided on a self 
serve basis as part of initial 
homelessness enquiry/ referral 
prior to interview 
 
Review available toolkits/ good 
practice 

Information collated 
through self serve facility 

Existing Senior 
Housing 
Manager 
 
Housing 
Strategy 
Officer 

Reviewed 
annually 

Provide quality advice by telephone, 
in person, supported by IT solutions 

IT homelessness module 
developed to effectively facilitate 
PHPs 
 
Ongoing staff supervision, 
training and procedures updates 
 
Consideration of virtual interview 
options 

 Existing Senior 
Housing 
Manager 

April 2018 
 
 
 
 
Reviewed 
annually 

Develop methods to collect 
customer feedback to inform and 
improve service delivery 

Work with customer services to 
develop approach to customer 
feedback 
 

Feedback mechanisms in 
place 
Feedback informs & 
improves service delivery. 

Existing Housing 
Strategy 
Officer 
 

Reviewed 
annually 

P
age 28



13 
 

Strategic Priority 1:  To prevent homelessness by providing a comprehensive range of services 

Aims Actions  How/ Planned Activity Outcome/ Impact/ 
Evidence/ Performance 

Measure 
Identified Resource Lead(s) Timescale 

Partner organisations provide 
quality advice relevant to customer 
needs 

Communications with partners 
through Homelessness Forums  

Meeting minutes Existing & shared use 
of partners resources 
(i.e. training) 

Housing 
Strategy 
Officer 
 

Reviewed 
annually 

Explore advice and support 
available to people from abroad who 
may become ineligible households 
to ensure an effective response  
 

Explore guidance and 
benchmark with local authorities 
 
Develop procedures and up to 
date accessible website 
information 

Clear, relevant information 
available 

 Housing 
Strategy 
Officer 
 

End 2018 
 
Reviewed every 
6 months 

 Ensure realistic perceptions of 
housing options (including 
availability of social housing), 
homelessness and knowledge of 
support services 

Clear, accessible, up to date 
self-help information on the 
Councils website  
 
Monitor & publish social lettings 
information 
 
Work to deliver positive housing 
pathways 
 
Consider opportunities to 
provide advice and information 
to young people through schools 
& mediation. 
 
Contact all single under 35s on 
SM housing register to raise 
awareness of SPHP services. 

  Housing 
Strategy 
Officer 

Annual lettings 
information 
published 

Implement 
Homelessness 
Reduction Act 

Continue to deliver and develop 
Implementation Plan 

Work with local authority 
services, stakeholders, and 
partners (statutory, voluntary 
and third sector) to deliver the 
Plan 

Greater prevention 
 
Delivery monitored by 
Transformation Board 
 

Existing Senior 
Housing 
Manager. 
Housing 
Strategy 
Officer 

Ongoing – key 
aspects in place 
by 3rd April 

P
age 29



14 
 

Strategic Priority 1:  To prevent homelessness by providing a comprehensive range of services 

Aims Actions  How/ Planned Activity Outcome/ Impact/ 
Evidence/ Performance 

Measure 
Identified Resource Lead(s) Timescale 

Develop Positive 
Pathways 

Consideration of best practice and 
work with partners and partnerships 
to develop Pathways for young 
people and vulnerable adults with 
complex needs 

Partnership work with County 
Councils and other partners 
(statutory, voluntary and third 
sector) and existing partnerships 
(i.e. DHOG) to deliver. 

Better joint working and 
outcomes for these client 
groups – increased 
prevention  

Existing & 
Transformational 
Challenge Fund 

Housing 
Strategy 
Officer 

Reviewed 
annually 

Improve prevention 
toolkit 

Good practice and projects 
developed 
 
 

Guidance and good practice 
considered 
 
 

Homelessness prevention 
with best use of existing 
resources 

Existing Senior 
Housing 
Manager. 
Housing 
Strategy 
Officer 

Reviewed 
annually 

Effective projects commissioned 
with SLA performance monitoring  
 
Customers signposted to relevant 
organisations and initiatives for help 
& support 

As stipulated within SLAs and 
annually as part of budget 
setting process. 
 
Maintain up to date information 
on available services  
 
Develop cost benefit analysis 
(NPSS toolkit) 

Performance meets targets  
 
Homelessness preventions 
with best use of existing 
resources 

Existing Housing 
Strategy 
Officer 

Reviewed 
annually 

Enhanced partnership working  Develop means (including IT 
solutions) to facilitate early 
referrals through the s213B Duty 
to Refer 
 
Development of joint working/ 
data sharing agreements, which 
set out and facilitate agreed best 
practice. 
 
Work with public health services.  
 
Funding opportunities secured 
to maintain and enhance 
services 

Early intervention & 
homelessness prevention. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Customers achieve 
sustainable and healthy 
living solutions 

Existing and new 
funding opportunities 

Housing 
Strategy 
Officer 

In place for 1st 
October 2018 
when duty 
commences 
 
 
Reviewed 
annually 

P
age 30



15 
 

Strategic Priority 1:  To prevent homelessness by providing a comprehensive range of services 

Aims Actions  How/ Planned Activity Outcome/ Impact/ 
Evidence/ Performance 

Measure 
Identified Resource Lead(s) Timescale 

Help households remain together 
where it is safe with mediation 

Build staff capacity to address 
through training, Home Visits, 
and ongoing work with social 
services support. 

Homelessness prevented 
and moves in a planned 
way rather than crisis 

Existing  Housing 
Strategy 
Officer 

Reviewed 
annually  

Help those experiencing domestic 
abuse to have access appropriate 
services, support and 
accommodation  

Work with County Council and 
partners to address need 
 
Sanctuary Scheme provision 

Range of appropriate 
services, support and 
accommodation in place 
(including refuge provision) 

Existing Housing 
Strategy 
Officer 

Reviewed 
annually  

Review use of Prevention Fund to 
ensure resources effectively utilised 
 
 

Work good practice and housing 
advice service to develop and 
implement Council wide policy 

Homelessness Prevented Existing  Housing 
Strategy 
Officer 

Reviewed 
annually  

Review use of DHP to ensure 
resources effectively targeted to 
prevent homelessness and explore 
options to help secure a move to 
alternative accommodation (i.e. 
cash rent deposits)  

Consider guidance and good 
practice 
 
Work with housing benefit 
service to develop DHP policy 
and implement 

 Existing Senior Benefit 
Officer. 
Senior 
Housing 
Manager. 
Housing 
Strategy 
Officer 

Reviewed 
annually 

 
 

Strategic Priority 2:  Ensure suitable accommodation is available to address and prevent homelessness 

Aims Actions  How/ Planned Activity Outcome/ Impact/ 
Evidence/ Performance 

Measure 

Identified 
Resource Lead(s) Timescale 

Increase the supply 
of affordable 
housing and 
maximise the use 
of existing housing 

Work with developers and RPs to 
increase new build affordable 
housing 

Through planning, regeneration 
services and revision of the 
Housing Strategy 

Number of new build 
affordable properties (PI) 

Homes England 
grant funding, S106 
and Right to Buy 
receipts 

Regeneration 
Manager 
 
Housing 
Strategy Officer 

Ongoing activity 
reviewed annually. 
 
Housing Strategy in 
place end 2018. 

P
age 31



16 
 

Strategic Priority 2:  Ensure suitable accommodation is available to address and prevent homelessness 

Aims Actions  How/ Planned Activity Outcome/ Impact/ 
Evidence/ Performance 

Measure 

Identified 
Resource Lead(s) Timescale 

 Support empty homes work, 
particularly supporting growth of 
rented sector 

Delivery of recent Empty Homes 
Strategy and cross service 
working group 

Empty Homes brought 
back into use 
 
Transformation Board 
review progress 

Existing skills within 
are being used to 
identify and map the 
location of empty 
homes 

Housing 
Strategy Officer 

Empty Property 
Strategy in place 
end 2017.  
Progress reviewed 
Transformation 
Board 

Work with RPs in relation to 
implementation of flexible/ fixed 
term tenancies 

Work with RPs to establish 
whether adopting, and if so, 
considerations/ actions/ 
homelessness prevention 
opportunities upon tenancy end 

 Existing resource Housing 
Strategy Officer 

Reviewed annually 

Review & establish nomination 
agreements 

Work with RPs to review existing 
& establish nomination 
agreements (50%) 

Nomination agreements 
agreed and in place 
 
Nominations monitored 
annually (LAHs return) 

Existing resource Housing 
Strategy Officer 

Reviewed annually 

Review mutual exchange options  Reviewed against best practice Clear information 
available about available 
options/ initiatives 

Existing resource Senior Housing 
Manager. 
Housing 
Strategy Officer 

Reviewed annually 

Ensure that 
repossession is the 
last resort 

Review HPBC eviction processes, 
including support available to 
customers at eviction warrant stage 

Consider guidance and good 
practice and work closely with 
rent collection team and Senior 
Housing Manger 

 Existing resource Senior Housing 
Manager 
 

Reviewed annually 

Enable early identification and 
proactive prevention of potential 
evictions from social tenancies 

Work closely with RPs to review 
existing & establish joint working 
arrangements/ protocols  

Formal arrangements in 
place & operating. 
Closer joint working, with 
referrals facilitating 
earlier intervention made 
to HAS. 
Increased homelessness 
prevention. 

Existing resource Housing 
Strategy Officer 

Reviewed annually 

 Review prevention options available 
to Owner Occupiers 

Review available good practice/ 
initiatives, equity release 
schemes.  

Customer information 
available  
 

Existing Housing 
Strategy Officer 
 

 

P
age 32



17 
 

Strategic Priority 2:  Ensure suitable accommodation is available to address and prevent homelessness 

Aims Actions  How/ Planned Activity Outcome/ Impact/ 
Evidence/ Performance 

Measure 

Identified 
Resource Lead(s) Timescale 

Respond to ongoing need for 
money, debt & budgeting advice, 
with digital access support 

Annual SLA & monitoring 
 
Increase personal budgeting 
support & digital assistance 
through delivery of UC 
Implementation Plan 

 Existing Housing 
Strategy Officer 
 
Senior Benefits 
Officer 

Reviewed annually 

Minimise use of 
Temporary 
Accommodation 
(TA) 
 

Review use of TA and develop 
policy/ procedures 
 
Consider the impact of changing 
funding arrangements for supported 
accommodation 
 

Review existing provision and 
use (including type, duration, out 
of area placements) 
 
 

Policy/ procedure in 
place 
 
No 16/17 year olds in 
B&B, not to place any 
families not in B&B for 
longer than 6 weeks 
 
Quarterly monitoring  
established 

Existing resources Housing 
Strategy Officer 

Review – end 2018 
 
Policy/ procedure –
June 2019 
 
Quarterly 
monitoring   

Review options for 
single people 
(including those 
aged under 35 
years) 

Commission services related to the 
SPHP & Access to PRS projects 
 
YP supported accommodation 
scheme alternative such as 
Nightstop in SM  

Review available good practice/ 
initiatives (sharing & lodging 
schemes, accommodation 
finding services) 
 

Options available for 
singles, under 35’s to 
support sustainable 
access to 
accommodation.  

Existing resources Housing 
Strategy Officer 

1st April 2019 
 
 
Reviewed annually 

Maintain supported 
accommodation 
options 

Consider the impact of changing 
funding arrangements for supported 
accommodation from 2020 
 
Work with partners to support ‘move 
on’ agenda 
 
Improve performance monitoring in 
relation to schemes receiving 
Intensive Housing Management 
funding 

In partnership with providers and 
working groups 
DHOG/HPOG/County Councils 
 
Through Homelessness Forums 
& MOPP 
 
Review performance monitoring 
procedures with providers 

Revised funding 
arrangements in place 
with minimal impact to 
existing supported 
accommodation. 
 
 
Revised monitoring 
procedures in place 
which inform service 
quality considerations 

 Housing 
Strategy Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Senior Benefits 
Officer 

Reviewed annually 

P
age 33



18 
 

Strategic Priority 2:  Ensure suitable accommodation is available to address and prevent homelessness 

Aims Actions  How/ Planned Activity Outcome/ Impact/ 
Evidence/ Performance 

Measure 

Identified 
Resource Lead(s) Timescale 

Ensure vulnerable 
and homeless 
households are 
appropriately 
prioritised on the 
housing registers 

Review allocations policy to make 
best use of stock & take into 
consideration HRAct 2017 

Complete review through Home 
Options Working Group 

Length of time to rehouse 
via Home Options data 

Existing Senior Housing 
Manager 
 
Housing 
Strategy Officer 

Reviewed annually 

 
 
 

Strategic Priority 3:  Improve the Private Rented Sector Offer 

Aims Actions  How/ Planned Activity Outcome/ Impact/ 
Evidence/ Performance 

Measure 
Identified Resource Lead(s) Timescale 

Advice and 
initiatives to support 
both tenants and 
landlords  

Deliver a ‘call before you serve’ 
early intervention landlord service 
pilot 
 
Improve property & management 
standards through Landlord 
Accreditation Schemes, 
enforcement activity, establishing 
Landlord Forums & building staff 
capacity to address illegal eviction  
 
 
 
 

Work with DHOG & DASH to 
develop, deliver and evaluate 
pilot. 
 
-Promotion of Landlord 
Accreditation Schemes. 
-Improved landlord information 
on websites, Universal Credit 
awareness raising sessions & 
FAQs. 
-Work with Environmental 
Health and Benefit Services to 
establish Landlord Forum & 
consult with landlords. 
-Staff training. 
 
 

Earlier intervention, 
enabled to remain or 
planned moves and 
rehousing options available  
 
Improved landlord 
relationships and joint 
working 
 
Increased prevention and 
relief of homelessness. 
 
‘Discharge of duty’ through 
private rented discharge 
policy 

Existing Senior 
Housing 
Manager 
 
Housing 
Strategy 
Officer 

Pilot scheme 
established 
during 2018/19 
 
 

P
age 34



19 
 

Strategic Priority 3:  Improve the Private Rented Sector Offer 

Aims Actions  How/ Planned Activity Outcome/ Impact/ 
Evidence/ Performance 

Measure 
Identified Resource Lead(s) Timescale 

Improve access to 
the private sector  
 

Recommission services related to 
both the Access to the Private 
Rented Sector and Single Persons 
Housing Projects. 
This will include Pre-tenancy 
training and Tenancy Support. 
 
Explore schemes that offer 
affordable shared accommodation 
 
Review Rent Deposit Bond 
Schemes and Prevention Fund 
 

Develop tender specification and 
work with procurement services 
 
 
 
 
 
Consider good practice 
 
 
Council wide RDBS & 
Prevention Fund policies 
developed with housing advice 
service and partners 

Homelessness preventions 
 
‘Discharge of duty’ through 
private rented discharge 
policy 

Existing Housing 
Strategy 
Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Senior 
Housing 
Manager 

Tender during 
2018/19, 
services in 
place by 
1/4/2019 
 
 
 
 
Revised RDBS 
& Prevention 
Fund schemes 
in place end 
2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 35



20 
 

Strategic Priority 4:  Ensure sufficient support is available to address and prevent homelessness 

Aims Actions  How/ Planned Activity Outcome/ Impact/ 
Evidence/ Performance 

Measure 
Identified Resource Lead(s) Timescale 

Reduce rough 
sleeping 

Help people off the streets & into 
settled accommodation  
 
 
 
 
Develop effective partnership 
working through a joint working 
protocol around tent provision in HP 
with Nightstop 
 
Work with Derby City mission 

Work closely with outreach 
service providers (Brighter 
Futures, P3) DHOG and other 
partners to develop services (in 
particular High Peak outreach 
provision post 31.3.2018). 
 
Consider good practice and 
develop protocol and monitored 
 
 
Through the local delivery of the 
rough sleeper project 
 

Number of reported/ seen 
rough sleepers & outcomes 
of interventions 
 
 
 
 
 

Existing Housing 
Strategy 
Officer 
 

Reviewed at 
DHOG and 
annually 

Mitigate the impact 
of Welfare Reforms 

Money, debt, budgeting and digital 
support provided  
 
Stronger links with Credit Unions  
 
Work with agencies to increase 
access and options for access to 
employment 
 
Ensure that DHP is effectively 
targeted to prevent homelessness 
and explore options to help secure a 
move to alternative accommodation  

Annual SLA & monitoring. 
 
Increase personal budgeting 
support & digital assistance 
through delivery of UC 
Implementation Plan 
 
Consider joint working good 
practice with Credit Unions 
 
Map & make available clear, 
accessible, up to date self-help 
information on the Councils 
website re employment related 
services 
 
Work with housing benefit 
service to develop DHP policy 
and implement 

 Existing Senior 
Housing 
Manager 
 
Senior 
Benefits 
Officer 
 
Housing 
Strategy 
Officer 
 
 

Reviewed 
Annually 

P
age 36



21 
 

Strategic Priority 4:  Ensure sufficient support is available to address and prevent homelessness 

Aims Actions  How/ Planned Activity Outcome/ Impact/ 
Evidence/ Performance 

Measure 
Identified Resource Lead(s) Timescale 

Ensure that 
vulnerable people 
can access support 
around various 
issues where it may 
impact upon the 
ability to maintain a 
home.   
 

(As above) 
 
Support options for female lone 
parent households (25-44 age 
group)  
 
Tenancy support provision –
particularly to address gap in SM 
 
Access to furniture and white goods 
within the Staffordshire Moorlands - 
particularly to address gap in SM 

 
Map & promote available 
options related to this and all 
other customer groups.  
Clear, accessible, up to date 
self-help information on the 
Councils website 
 
 
 

 Existing Senior 
Housing 
Manager 
 
Housing 
Strategy 
Officer 

Reviewed 
annually 

Improve support 
needs data 
collection 

Collate data from Assessments and 
HCLIC monitoring, which can inform 
understanding and service 
commissioning 

Establish quarterly reporting Greater understanding of 
customer support needs/ 
gaps, which can be used to 
inform service 
commissioning/ funding 
opportunities 

Existing Housing 
Strategy 
Officer 

Quarterly 
monitoring 
established by 
end 2018 

P
age 37



22 
 

 

Page 38



  

  
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

Report to Corporate Select Committee 
 

23 April 2018 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendices Attached: 
 
Appendix A:  Corporate Equality Objectives 2018/19 
Appendix B: Proposed Equality and Diversity Policy 
 
 
1. Reason for the Report: To review the Council’s Corporate Equality 

Objectives and the Corporate Equality Policy. 
 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 To consider and comment upon the Council’s Corporate Equality 
Objectives 2018/19 and the adoption of a revised Corporate Equality 
Policy. 

 
 

3. Executive Summary 
 

3.1 In 2015 both Alliance Councils adopted a new Equality and Diversity 
Policy and approved Corporate Equality Objectives (which were 
updated in 2017). 

 
3.2 It is proposed to retain the current Equality Objectives for 2018/19 with 

a progress report to be published at the end of the year. 
 

TITLE: Equality and Diversity Policy 
 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Emily Thrane – Executive 

Councillor for Finance and Operational 
Services 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Mark Forrester, Democratic & Community 

Service 
   
WARDS INVOLVED:  All 

Page 39

Agenda Item 6



  

3.3 As a result of monitoring legal cases which have considered the duties 
of public authorities under the Equality Act 2010 it is recommended that 
the Council revise its policy to address the findings in such cases.   

 
 

4.       How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 This report relates to the Corporate Aims:  
 
• Provide Quality Services in Partnership with Communities.  

 
 
5.       Options and Analysis 
 

5.1 That councillors consider and comments on the revised Equality Policy 
and Corporate Equality Objectives. (Recommended) 

 
5.2 That councillors  does not consider or comment on the revised Equality 

Policy and Corporate Equality Objectives. (Not recommended) 
 
 

6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
 
Fulfilling the duties of the Equality Act 2010 will contribute to achieving 
increased safety for the most vulnerable within our communities. 
 

6.2 Workforce 
 
The Joint Equality and Diversity Policy supports the Council’s approach 
to providing a modern and diverse workforce. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
 
Undertaking the actions associated with the proposed Corporate Equality 
Objectives will enable the Alliance Councils to meet their Equality Duties. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
 
There are no direct financial implications arising from the proposed 
policy and actions.  
 

6.5 Legal 
 
The Equality Act 2010 places a duty on the Council to publish Equality 
Objectives and report on their achievement. The proposed revised 
Corporate Equality Policy addresses the issues arising from the 
decisions in legal cases considering duties under the Act. 
 

Page 40



  

6.6 Sustainability 
 
None. 
 

6.7 
 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
 
The proposed Corporate Equality Objectives provide for consultation 
with ‘protected groups’. 
 

6.8 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
An effective policy and implemented plan of action will reduce the risk of 
poor decision making and legal challenge. 
 
 

7.         Background and Detail 
 

7.1 The Equality Act 2010 placed a number of duties on Councils, including 
the duty to publish evidence of compliance with the duties in the Act 
and the Council’s Equality Objectives. 
 

7.2 In 2015 both Alliance Councils adopted a new Equality and Diversity 
Policy and approved Corporate Equality Objectives. 

 
7.3 The Council published updated Equality Objectives in 2017. While the 

current objectives are not framed as outcomes the intention is that 
actions associated with them will lead the Council to focus on key 
issues for protected groups. 

 
7.4 The Council’s transformation programme has resulted in new systems 

and approaches to customer contact/ service, committee management 
and staff training. Introduction of these systems has been a priority and 
with progress on the equality actions dependent on these 
developments the Council is now in a good position to achieve its 
objectives. It is proposed to retain the current Equality Objectives for 
2018/19 with a progress report produced at the end of the year. 
(Appendix A) 
 

7.5 Officers have reviewed legal cases where there have been objections 
to decisions by public bodies and an alleged failure to follow equality 
policies/duties has been a ground for challenge. Given the risk of such 
challenge to the Council it is proposed that the Council’s policy is 
reviewed to ensure that it is clear and focussed on the Council’s duties 
under the Act. 

 
7.6 The proposed revised policy is attached at Appendix B for 

consideration. 
 

 
 

Page 41



  

Mark Trillo 
Executive Director & Monitoring Officer 

 
 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

 
 
 

Page 42



Appendix A 
Corporate Equality Objectives 2018/19 
 

High Peak Borough Council & Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
Equality & Diversity Scheme: Action Plan 2018/19 

Equality Objectives Action 
Knowing our communities 

To understand who lives in our 
communities and their needs. 

• Update the Community Profile (a 
resource which describes the makeup 
of our borough/district by protected 
characteristics) and promote its use to 
service managers. 

• See also consultation (below) 
Place shaping, leadership and commitment 

To clearly state our equality priorities and 
ensure that we have systems in place to 
achieve them. 

• Ensure that measures are included in 
service plans as they are revised and 
brought together as an overall plan. 

Community engagement and satisfaction 
To ensure that we include those with 
‘protected characteristics’ in our 
consultation and engagement processes. 

• Update the consultation forward plans. 

Responsive services and Customer care 
To ensure that equality performance 
actions are included in service plans and 
monitored. 

• Incorporate consideration of equality 
impacts as part of the Modern Gov. 
committee management process. 

• Train managers to understand the 
equality impact assessment process. 

A modern and diverse workforce 
To ensure that our workforce reflects as 
far as possible the makeup of the 
community we serve and has the 
necessary skills  

• Pilot the use of a staff profile 
questionnaire (collecting information in 
relation to protected characteristics) 
and promote to staff. 

• Provide equality training for staff. 
 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 Equality & Diversity Policy 
 

(DRAFT) 
 
 

  
 
  

Page 45



 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. Purpose and Scope 
 
1.1 The purpose of having this policy is to provide a coherent approach to tackling 

equality and diversity across all the protected equality characteristics (age, 
disability, gender, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnerships, 
pregnancy and maternity*, race, religion/belief and sexual orientation) It also 
aims to make equality and diversity integral to the way that the Council works 
in order to achieve: 

 
• A clearer understanding of the needs of the residents of the High Peak 
• Better informed decision-making and policy development 
• Excellent quality services which meet varied needs 
• More effective targeting of policy and resources that will do the most to 

increase equality 
• Better outcomes and greater confidence in public services 
• A more effective use of talent in the workforce 

 

2. Responsibilities 

2.1 The Chief Executive with senior management teams are responsible for 
providing leadership in the implementation of this policy and for ensuring that 
they and their staff understand and comply with their responsibilities under the 
Equality Act.  

2.2 Councillors have overall responsibility for the direction and scrutiny of this 
policy and will ensure that principles of fairness and equality guide the 
decision making process.  

                                                 
* Matters in relation to paternity pay and leave are appropriately considered by the Council as an 
employer. 

Policy Statement 
 

High Peak Borough Council (HPBC) (the Council) is committed to fulfilling its duty 
under the Equality Act. To 

•  
• Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other 

conduct prohibited by the Act. 
• Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 

characteristic and those who do not.  
• Foster good relations between people who share a protected 

characteristic and those who do not.  
 
 
 

Page 46



 

 
 

 

 

3. Service Delivery  
 
3.1 The Council provides direct services, regulates, funds and commissions 

services. In all these roles and activities the Council is committed to fair and 
equitable access to services, whether they are provided directly by Council 
employees, in partnership with other agencies or indirectly through external 
contract, funding or commissioning arrangements. All service areas will take 
steps to ensure that Council functions and policies are carried out in a way 
that complies with statutory requirements and meets the needs of all local 
people as appropriately as possible.   

 
3.2 The Council aims to ensure that all its functions and policies are carried out in 

a way that complies with statutory requirements by: 
 

• Ensuring equal access, fair treatment and appropriate provision to the 
whole community regardless of age, disability, gender, gender 
reassignment, marital or civil partnership status, pregnancy or maternity 
status, race, religion, nationality, social background or sexual orientation;   
 

• Providing services that are designed to meet a wide range of different 
needs in the community;   

 
• Providing appropriate services, adapting them, where reasonable, to meet 

the needs of the whole community promoting equal access to services, 
including producing clear information about how to access our services 
(for example in large print); 
 

• Providing and publicise clear information on how customers can complain 
or comment about the services they have received and respond efficiently 
to complaints;  
 

• Ensuring that wherever practicable, all services and buildings are 
accessible to everyone; 

 
• Carrying out consultation and undertaking formal impact assessment when 

necessary to ascertain whether current service provision and any 
proposed changes are consistent with legal obligations. 

 

4. Training 
 
4.1 Equipping Councillors, managers and Council employees with the knowledge 

and skills is essential. 
 

Training will be focused at a range of levels including: 
 
• Training at an appropriate level for all employees on equality and diversity; 

Page 47



 

 
 

 

 
• General awareness as part of the induction programme for all new 

employees.  
 

• Refresher training when appropriate. 
 

5. The Council as an Employer 
 
5.1 The Council is a major employer in the Borough.  As an employer the Council 

aims to: 
 

• Develop, review and promote policies and practices that ensure equality of 
opportunity and eliminate discrimination for our workforce in all areas of 
employment, including recruitment, retention, learning and development, and 

 
• Reflect the diverse nature of the Borough within the Council’s workforce. 

 

6. Working with Partners 
 
6.1 The Council works closely with many different groups of people in the 

community on numerous issues and will take a leading role to drive equality 
and diversity forward across the Borough. 

 
6.2 Key partners include community and voluntary groups. These provide an 

excellent way of communicating, consulting and designing services with the 
people of the area as well as acting a monitoring forum on how the Council is 
delivering.  

 

7. Procurement and contract management 
 
7.1 The Council will take into account in its tender evaluation and contracting 

processes a potential contractor’s approach to equalities in terms of its 
employment practices and service delivery. It will do this by asking potential 
contractors relevant questions and include appropriate provisions in its 
contract documents relating to these matters.   

 

8. The Council’s Action Plan 
 
8.1 The Council has published its equality and diversity objectives which will set 

out specific actions which the Council will undertake, including timeframes, to 
promote its equality objectives.  This will be updated when required. 

 
8.2 The Council’s equality and diversity objectives will be audited periodically to 

ensure delivery of those objectives and the results published on the Council’s 
website. 

Page 48



 

 
 

 

 
8.3 The Council will arrange appropriate training for all its staff. 
 

9. Contact details 
 
For further information or if you would like this document in large print, Braille or 
audio format, contact Mark Forrester, Manager, Democratic and Community 
Services: 
 
mark.forrester@highpeak.gov.uk 
 
01298 28400 
 
High Peak Borough Council 
Buxton Town Hall 
Market Place 
Buxton 
Derbyshire 
SK17 6EL 
 

Page 49

mailto:mark.forrester@highpeak.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 CORPORATE 
Chairman: Councillor Barrow 

Vice Chairman: Councillor Douglas 
Lead Officer: A Stokes 

Date Items Contact Officer Purpose/Method of 
Consideration 

23-Apr-18 Disposal of Land at Dollywood Close (Part 2) P Hare  
Facilities Management Contract (Part 2) P Hare  
Electrical testing, rewire and remedial works tender (Part 
2) 

P Hare  

Equalities Update M Trillo  
Homelessness Strategy M Walker  
Alliance Environmental Services (AES) – Phase 2 Transfer 
of Services 

A Stokes  

Select Committee Work Programme   
   

June-18 Appointment of Chairman & Vice-Chairman   
Annual Performance Report V Higgins  
Car Park Investment T Crawford  
Safeguarding Update M Trillo  
Fourth Quarter Performance and Financial Review 
(Outturn) 2017/18 

A Stokes  

Impact of the closure of Buxton Court L Vernon  
Select Committee Work Programme   
   

July-18 First Quarter Performance and Financial Review (Outturn) 
2018/19 

C Hazledene /  
V Higgins 

 

Select Committee Work Programme   
   

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 7



 
 
 

 CORPORATE 
Oct-18 Annual Safeguarding Report   

Select Committee Work Programme   
   

Nov-18 Medium Term Financial Plan Update A Stokes  
2nd Quarter Performance and Financial Review 2018/19 A Stokes  
Select Committee Work Programme   
   

Feb-19 Third Quarter Performance and Financial Review 2018/19 A Stokes  
Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan 2019/20   A Stokes  
Select Committee Work Programme   
   

Apr-19 Select Committee Work Programme   
   

To add in Temporary Agency Services A Stokes  
Derbys & Notts Arrangements   
   
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 52



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMUNITY 
Chairman: Councillor Young 

Vice Chairman: Councillor Sizeland  
Lead Officer: M Trillo 

Date Items Contact Officer Purpose/Method of 
Consideration 

18-Apr-2018 Update from Police and Crime Commissioner PCC Dhindsa  
EMAS Update EMAS  
Review of Public Realm CCTV Surveillance System (Part 
2) 

David Smith  

Work Programme   
   

June-2018 Appointment of Chairman and Vice Chairman   
Glossopdale bioliners project update Keith Parker  
People for Places Health and Wellbeing Project Update & 
Annual Review and Performance 

PfP  

Sport and Physical Activity Strategy David Stock  
Environmental Enforcement Annual Update  David Smith  
Leisure Contract Arrangements (P2)  Andrew Stokes  
Work Programme   
   

Aug-2018 Work Programme   
   

Sep-2018 Update from Derbyshire Police   

P
age 53



 
 
 

COMMUNITY 
Work Programme   
   

Nov-2018 Work Programme   
   
   

Jan-2019 Work Programme   
   
   

March-2019 Work Programme   
   
   

To add 
in/current 
and planned 
Sub-
Committees: 

Update on Glossop Household Recycling Centre  C Brailsford DCC 
Community Rights M Forrester  
Update from NWAS NWAS  
Update on review of Disabled Facilities Grant DCC  
Chartered Institute of Housing Review of Sheltered 
Accommodation 

Mark Trillo  

Non-financial update from Housing Revenue Account 
Business Plan 

Helen Core  

Fairfield Road Update Mike Towers  
Adult Social Care Residential Care Policies and impact 
on HPBC 

DCC  

Monitoring of Alliance Environmental Services Andrew Stokes  
Care Together Programme Update Tameside and Glossop 

CCG (Jessica 
Williams) 

 

   

P
age 54



 
 
 

       18 April 2018 

ECONOMY AND GROWTH  
Chairman: Councillor A McKeown 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Grooby 

Lead Officer: Dai Larner 

Date Items Contact Officer Purpose/Method of 
Consideration 

19-Apr-18 Business Improvement Districts Dai Larner Report & presentation 
Skills Lindsay Allen, D2N2 

LEP 
Presentation 

National Planning Policy Framework Consultation Mark James  
Growth and Planning Pranali Parikh/|Ben 

Hayward 
Presentation 

Gateway Improvement Programme  Richard Tuffrey  
Work Programme   
   

Jun-18 Appointment of Chairman and Vice Chairman   
Car Park investment Terry Crawford  
Greater Manchester Spatial Framework Update  Pranali Parikh  
South East Manchester Multi-Modal Study Refresh  Pranali Parikh  
Right to buy update  Pranali Parikh  
Work Programme   
   

Jul-18 Local Plan – delivery report Hilary Senior  
Work Programme   
   

Sep-18 Work Programme   
   
   

P
age 55



 
 
 

       18 April 2018 

ECONOMY AND GROWTH  
Nov-18 Work Programme   

   
   

Feb-19 Work Programme   
   
   

Mar-19 Work Programme   
   
   

To add in Other infrastructure updates ? Mark James/Partners 
to be invited to attend 

 

Update/s on Peak Park Local Plan ?   
Arrangements in Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire to 
create metro area 

  

   
   
   
   
   
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 56



Document is Restricted

Page 57

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 59

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 83

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 101

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 109

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 115

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Homelessness Strategy
	Appendix

	6 Equalities Update
	Appendix A
	Appendix B

	7 Select Committee Work Programme
	10 Exempt minutes of the previous meeting
	11 Alliance Environmental Services (AES) - Phase 2 Transfer of Services
	12 Facilities Management Arrangements
	13 Disposal of two strips of land at Dollywood Close, Buxworth
	14 Electrical Testing and Remediation Housing Revenue Account Properties - Contract Award Report
	Appendix A


